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Pinewood Group Limited

Strategic Report

Business overview

Pinewood Group Limited ("Finewood” or the "Group' ) 1s the leading ir dependent prove
screen based content In addition, Pinewood offers services that supp ort the screen b
3erVICeS

The Group has histoncally had two reporing segments — Media Servi tes which provic’
services to the screen-based industnes and Media Investment, which provides invesin
the screen-based industries

The Media Services segment principally generates revenue from Fiim Television and ”
of rental, anciliary and other preduction services

In lne with 1ts strategy to focus on the core business i year ending 2 1 March 2017 th.
the Media Investment segmeant activities and Pinewood Creative and sold its entire int.

The ceased activiies do not meet the definition of discontinued operalions as they hav

Business review

Media Services turnover

Media Services had total turnover within thes segment of £79 7m for the year (year enr,
£0 3m of intersegment turnover {year ended 31 March 2017 £0 6m) 'ntersegment tui

the utiisation of the Company s core services by the Group's wholly-c wned Filrn Produ
occupancy for the year ended 31 March 2018 was 923% (year ended 71 March 2017 &
Pinewood Studios was Solo A Star Wars Story {Lucasfilm) and at S| epperton Studio.
{Universaly

Media Inves*ment turnover

The Media Investmeant segment (trackng as 'Pinewood Pictures ) acli ded an agreem .
television and video game nvestment opportuntigs for two macia de zlopment funds
Man Treasury and a £30m fund established by the Welsh Governmert In addition th
investmant by the Group in Briish quahfying film and tugh-end televis 3n preductions

Media Investmant turnover for the year was £2 0m (year endad 31 M. rch 2017 £22 2

The year on year decrease 18 principally driven by a decrease n Fitm Zroduction Com
ending 31 March 2018 versus £20 0min 2017) A FPC s considered ctive from the ¢
15 completed and delivered The aperating lass from FPC actaity of £ 3m tyear ende
UK film tax relief of £0 3m (year ended 31 March 2017 £1 8m) as ex; =cted

In 2017, management decided to cease all activities relating to Media Investment

On 31 October 2017 the Group s Collaboration agreement with the W =lsh Government
the Group ceased providing investment advisory services to the Isle of Man Treasury

o1 of the real estate required to produce
ed industries including digital content

= studio facilihes and related production
=nt funding and production services to

iedia Hub activites through the provision

Group ceased certain activites, namely,
=35t in the Pinewoed TV int venture

- not heen disposed of

d 31 March 2017 £76 tm), excluding
wer relates to turnover generated from
tion Companies { FPCs ) Stage

) The largest film production at

was Mamma Mia' Here We Go Agam

t to source and advise on film high-end

+ £25m fund estabhshed by the isle of

segment involves identification and

)

iny ("FPC™ activity (£1 3min the year
= of film financing untif the production
31 March 2017 £2 2m was offset by

~as terminated and on 25 October 2017



Pinewooed Group Limited

Strategic Report (continued)

Business review (continued)

Cast of safes
Cost of sales expenses decreased from £63 9min the year endin . 31 March 201710 £42 9m in the year ending 31 March 2018
predominantly due to the cessation of the Media Investment activ 4

Seling & Oistribution costs
Selling and Distribution expenses decreased to £2 1 millon in the year ending 31 March 2018 from £2 3 million in the year
ending 31 March 2017 This was pnmarly due a decrease in stalr costs and professional fees

Admpistrative expenses from recurnng activities

Adrministrative expenses decreased to £7 7 millon in the year end.ng 341 March 2018 from £10 2 milion in the year ending 31
March 2017, which we primarily atiribute to a decrease n staff co s in relation 10 reduced employee headoount, and the expiry
of our long-term incentive plan

Exceplional items

The Group discloses as exceptional items on the face of the incor i staternent those tems which, because of the nature and
expected infrequency of the events giving rise to them, ment sep: rate disclosure to alfow users of the financial statements to
better understand the elements of financial performance In the ye 1 so as to faciitate comparison with prier peneds and to
better assess trends in financial performance

The Company generated net exceplional operaiing income of £0 m {year ended 3) March 2017 costs of £3 2m) as detalled in
Note 3

Income from Participating Interasts

Income from paricpating interests in the year ending 31 March 2018 was £3 1m coanpared to £1 1min the year ending 31
March 2017 Expansions in Atlanta along with the calculatian of ir ~ome from particizating interests heing on a gross as
opposed to net of tax, basis are the pnmary reasons for the incre e see note 8

interest recetvable and siumifar mcome
Interest receivable and similar income increased from £0 3m in th  year ending 31 yiarch 2017 to £3 8 million in the year ending
31 March 2018 reflecting interest chargeable on the loan 1o paren and receipts on loan notes related to Pinewood MBS

interest payable and simifar charges

interest payable and similar charges increased from £5 3 milion 1 the year ending 31 March 2017 to £6 1 million in the year
ending 31 March 2018 which we pnmarily attribute ta loan interes' payable oh the Croups debt and includes the impact of the
refinancing

Tax on profit an ordinary activities

The tax charge on profit on ordinary activities increased from £1 « imillion in the yea ending 31 March 2017 to a £5 9 milhon
charge in the year ending 31 March 2018 primanly atinbutable to 1na reduction of the UK Film Tax Relief credit receivabie due
to the cessation of the Media Investment activity, increased taxat « profit and inconie from participating interests being on a
gross, as opposed to net of tax basis, see note 8

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations on consshdation
Exchange differences resulted in an other comprehensive loss of + 0 6min the year ending 31 March 2018 (2017 gain £1 3m)
predominantly from translation of the Atlanta joint venture

Property plant and equipment
The Group had property, plant ang equipment with a net book val.ue of £233 4m as at 31 March 2018 (as at 31 March 2017
£236m} The movement refates to additions of £8 3m offset by de weciation of £8 8m

in June 2017, the Group acquired (aleham Nurseries, 3 ha of lan: | adjacent 1o Shepperton Studio’s backiot Together with the
purchase of 13 ha of land earlier in the year. the acquisition provic s the Group with a total of 50 ha for the design of a new
masterpian for Shepperton Studios

in September 2017, South Bucks Districi Counal granted full plan ung permission for Finewood East Phase 2 in December
2017, three construction firms participated In @ tender process 1o 'ppoint the main contractor for the Pinewood East Phase 2
development The preferred contractor was selected m February *018

Inferests in joint veniures
For details see note 8

Fmancial instruments held at fair vatue through profit and foss

Faor detalls of financial instruments which includes other investmer s of £1 7mat 31 March 2018 (2017 £1 2m} loan notes
receivable of £2 7m as at 31 March 2018 (2017 £2 5m) and denv stve financial ins'ruments £1 8m payable as at 31 March
2018 (2017 £3 7m payable) see note 16

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables have increased from £19 7m as at 3 March 2017 to £155 6m as at 371 March 2018 predominantiy
due to 2 £129m loan Issued to the parent, an ncrease on trade r-cetvables in the Media Services segment of £14 6m dué to
the timing of cash receipts partally offset by the reduced receivat es in the media mvestment segment of £4m following the
cessation of activities



Pinewood Group Limited

Strategic Report (continued)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables have decreased by £4 9m as at 31 March 7018 to £48 8m f* m £563 7m as at 31 March 2017
predominantly due to the cessation of Media Investment activity, the =sttlement of pre
and the exceptional release of a rent free accrual offeet by an increas » in deferred ince e

Refipancing

ausly accrued loss of office payments

Cn 13 December 2017 a refmancing of the Group was completed At this date the G+ up's existing drawn senjor facilitres,
which were £87 5 millon were repard in full and £250 million of new & 75% Senior Se- red Notes due 1 December 2023 were
issued Pmewood Group Limited advanced a £127 & million loan on tots Parent {Pictu 2 Holdeo Limitedy On 13 December
2017 the Group secured a super senior revolving credit facility of £50mwhich1s avail: e to draw down until 1 May 2023 with

Barclays ple, Credit Swsse AG Londen Branch HSBC Bank plc and | loyds Bank plc
milhon mult-currency revolving credit faciity and 1ts £5m overdraft fac ity

Cash and cash equivalents

" 2 Group terminated its existing £35

Cash and cash eguivalents ncreased to £43 0m at 31 March 2018 frem £28 Smat 317 arch 2017 Gash flow from operating
actvites before changes i working capital n the year to 31 March . 318 of £38 5m " 117 £24 3mj) has been partally offset by
the movements in working capilat described above Cash fiow from investing actvites  f£133 9man the year ending 31 March
2018 (2017 £28 5m) principally includes the payments for purchase ¢ property plant . d equipment along with & £127 Sm loan
tc the Parent Cash flow from financing activities of £130 2m in the ye 1 ending 31 Ma
ending 31 March 2017 principally refiecting the impact of the refinanchg detailed abow

year ending 31 March 2018 (2017 £36m)

Key performance indicators

h 2018 comparses to £22 6mn the year
and dividend payments of £12 0m i the

The Group uses a number of key performance indicators ('KPIs } to micmitor the Grou: - performance as well as to measure

progress against the Group s objectives The KPIs used are

Stage Occupancy

Turnover (excluding Media Investment ceased)
Adisted EBITDA (see below)

Adusted EBITDA margins

Cash generated from operations

Adjusted net debt (see below)

Capital expendifure

31

Warch 31 March
2018 2017
£:000 £000

03% 81%

9 590 76 082

2328 34 062

33 1% 44 8%

30624 34 971

7 581) (73 040}

G482 31632

Group profit on orcinary activities after taxation for the year ended 31 March 2018 waz 24 4m (2017 £13 6m) mncluding the

mmpact of excephonal tems and the movement on fair value of financi 3l dervatives

Capital expenditure represents the total purchase of property plant ar.d equipment n
joint ventures as disclosed in the statement of cash flows adjusted fo- the moverment in capital creditor

Reconciliation of profit on erdinary activities after taxation to adwsted EBITDA

Proht on ordinary activities after taxation

Other interest recewable and similar income

interest payable and similar expenses

Tax charge on profit on ordinary activites
Depreciation of property plant and equipment
Amortisation of goodwill

Amartisation of long-term assets

Exceptional tems

Operating loss attnibutable to Media Investment - FRC
Operating loss. (profity attrbutable to Meda Investment - other
Loss on disposal of property  plant and eguipmant
Adjusted EBITDA

31

stment acquisittons and investment in

"Aarch 31 March
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
4358 13 607
377 (344)
[sRelarg 5294
5905 1436
881 8111
560 550
- 168
(549) 3170
257 2164
543 (150)
54 48

2338 34 062



Pinewood Group Limited

Strategic Report (continued)

Reconciliation of ad)justed net debt

31 March 31 March
2018 2017
£'000 £000
Current assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 43,043 28,464
Non-current borrowings
Term loan facility - {100 DOO)Y
High yield bond (246 881) -
Asset financing (724} {1,504)
Non-current drawn loan facilities, less current assets (204.362) {73 040}
Secured loan arrangament costs 1,282 438
Net debt (203 080) (72 €602)
Adjustments
Interest accrued 3,042 -
Lean Issue costs (7.843) (438)
Adjusted net debt 207 6812 !?3 040}

Prncipal risks and uncertainties
The Group's principal risks and uncertainties are as follows

Commercial and general nsk

The Group s dependent on demand for production of new screer content and film nroductions Any changes in demand for
these productions or technological developments resulting in deci ased demand for our studios could have a material adverse
effect on our business

Exit from the Eurcpean Union
The Board 1s centinuing to monitor engong Brexit negotiztions and the potential imy ications for the Group

Development risk

The Group may undertake a number of caprial expenditures incle ung in connaction with the further development and
expansion of its existing studios, the inabiity to obtan the necess. 1y permits, the Inalxiity to complete such projects on me or
at all, the inability to generate the desired returns therafrom or the inability to raise «dditional capital as might be required to
complete such projects could have a matenal adverse effect on o r business financial conchition and results of operations

The Group engages advisors with the necessary experience 1o cc mplement the Gruup's in-house teams and manage this risk

Business continuity and disaster recovery
A major incident such as a fire or an explosion could put people a 1d/or the sites of uperation at nsk resuit 10 a loss of turnover
and damage the Group s reputation

A dedicated health, safety and fire team carries out regular rnisk evaluation A Busimess Continuity Team 1s 2lso in place to
ensure that the operational business continues as far as possible . the event of a 1najor incident . The Group has an insurance
portfolio, which looks to mitigate potential iIncidents described 1. Iso invests 1 nformation technalogy and monitors the
adequacy of its applicalions n use on an ongoing basis

Regulatory and environmental nsk

We are exposed to risks relaung to regulations and lliabiliies ansi g from our opera ions and assets inciuding environmeantal
health and safety laws and hatilities

Financial nsk management
The main nisk currently anising from the Group s financial istrume ts 1s hguicity nsk - Interest rate nsk, credit risk, foreign
exchange nsk and fiscal iIncentives are also considered below

Liguidity risk
The Group manages its exposure to hquidity nsk al Group level 7 ne Group s objective s to mamtain a balance between the
continuity of operating and development fupding and flexibility usi g cash and a revolving credit facility

As at the Statement of financial position date the Group has bani ing faciities of up to £300 7m, comprsing a £50m revelving
credit facility, a £250m high yield bond and an asset financing faci iy of £0 7m These facilites are secured on certain of the
principal assets of the Group The revolving credit facilty has one covenant and a range of events of default together with
vanable margins between 132 5 and 232 5 basis ponts over LIBC R The asset finencing is covenant free and has a fixed
intergst rate of 62¢ basis points



Pinewood Group Limited

Strategic Report (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (continued)

Interest rale risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future values of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
markel interest rates, The Group's exposure 1o the risk of changes in market interest rates relates pnmarnily o the Group's long
term debl obligations with ficating interest rates  In order to manage its interest rate nsk the Group's policy Is to have at least
50% of its borrowings at fixed rates of interast

Cradit risk

Credit risk is the risk that & counier-party will not meet ils obligation under a financial insirurnent or customer conlracl, leadmg lo
a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities, primanly trade recervables, and financiat
instruments.

Customer credit nsk s managed across the Group in accordance with palicy, procedures and conirols relating to cuslomer
credit nsk management The Group trades with recognised, creditworthy third parlies and il is lhe Group's policy thal all
customers who wish to frade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis to manage the Group’s exposure to bad debts.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group does not hedge against forelgn cutrency exposure due to its rminimal exposure to forelgn currency movements as ts
business Is conducled primaniy ih UK stertng. The Board continues 1o review this area to identify any potential exposure with
the increase 1n internabional arrangements.

Fiscal incenlives

Changes to the UK's film, animation, video games and high end television tax incentives ar an increase of incentives in
overseas jurisdictions could damage (he attractiveness of the UK as a destination for film content creation.

The Group monitors the cultural and economic coniribution that screen-based industries make to the UK economy.

Compelition risk
The Group competes in an international markelplace and film producers are abie to choose from a number of siudios worldwide.

Were other existing studios to invest significantly, or new studios to be successfully established either in the UK or elsewhere,
this may have a material adverse effect on the Group's markel share, reduce its bargaining power in commercial hegctiations,
and threaten profitability due to ongoing cperational costs being largely fixed i nature.

The Group continues to invest to ensure that the expectations and demand from the indusiry are met.

Post balance sheet events and future developments

in September 2017, the Group obtained full consent from the local planning authorities for the development of ¢. 200,000 sq ft
of additional studio space in what would be the second phase of construction at Pinewood East. Following a compettive tender
process, the Group selected a preferred contractor to assist in finalising the design of the scheme in advance of a polential starl
of the development later in the year.

In June 2018, the Group announced a consultahion process with the relevant local authorities i advance of the potential
submission of a planning application 1o secure consent for the expansion of Shepperton Studios If obtained, the permission will
secure the polential for future growth at Shepperion.

In ine with its sirategy to focus on the core business, in 2017 the Group ceased certain activiles, namely, the Media nvestment
segment activiies and Pinewood Crealive and sold its entire interest in the Pinewood TV joint venture

On 26 June 2018, the Group exchanged conlracts for the acquisition of c. 80 acres of land adjaceni lo Pinewood studios

In respect of the Media Services segment the Directors expect the general level of activity o be maintained in the forthcoming
year

Going Concern

in assessing the going concem basis, the Directers considered the Group's business activities, the financial position of the
Group and the Group's financial risk management objectives and policias. The Group meets its day-to-day working capital
requirements through its bank faciklies. The Group’s forecasis and projeclions, laking accounlt of reasonably possibie changes
in trading performance, econofmuc uncertainty and Brexit, show that the Group will be able to operate within Lhe level of its
curent factities.

Information on the Group's Financial risk management 15 included in the Direclors' repont, and other Principal Risks and
Uncertainties are detalled in the Stratepic report. The Directors, having made appropriale enquines, consider thal the Group
has adequale rasources 1o continue in the operational business for the foreseeable future and have therefore conlinued 1o
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

Approved by the Board and signed on its bgbalf by

=

Christopher Naisby
Director
26 June 2018




Pinewood Group Limited

Directors’ Report
The Directors present their annual report and audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018

Results and Dividends

Group profit on ordinary activities after taxation for the year ended 31 March 2018 was £24 4m (2017 £13 6m), InCluding the
Impact of exceptional items and the movement on farr value of financial dervatives

Dividends totaling £12 Om were paid dunng the year (2017 £3 6m) The Directors do not recommend payment of a final
dividend

Directors
The Directors, who served duning the year and to the date of signing, unless otherwise indicated were as follows

Ivan Dunleavy (resigned 24 Apnl 2017)
Paul Golding

Luis Moner Parra

Ctinstopher Naisby

Nathan Stuke

Nicholas Smith (resigned 24 Apnl 2017)
Andrew Smith

Alson Trewartha

Directors’ Liabilities

The Company has granted an indemnity 1o one or more of its Directors against habiity brought by third parties, subject to the ,
conditions set out in the Companies Act 2006 Such qualifying thurd party iIndemnity provision remans i force as at the date of
approving the Directors’ Report

Employees

The Group actively considers the position of its employees’ nghts through comprehensive and regularly reviewed employment
practices in the areas of recruitment, training, welfare, remuneration and employee relatiens

In addtion 1o a published grievance policy, the Group mantaing a "Whistleblower' policy providing an opportunity for employees
to raise gnevances with senior management

The Group's stated policy on Equal Opportunities recogmises the diversity of individuals and has procedures in place 10 ensure
that recruitment and promohion recogrises such diversity and 1% not biased by conskleration of age, gender, disabilty, colour,
racial ongin, religion or sexual onentaton We provide employees with reasonable conditions of employment and career
prospects

The Group supperts its disabled employees with regular traning and support through the equal opportunity and training policies

The Group has regular contact with employees via its intranet site, Spotlight, and via regular catch ups and brefings These
methods are used to ensure employees are kept up to date with the performance of the business  [n addition, the Group
continuously manages employees’ performance

Investing in skills, traming and development remains a high pricnty for the Company. 21 Pinewood empioyees have completed
the Pmewood Studio Management Diploma course and further 11 are currently studying for the Diploma The Diploma equips
candidates with the knowledge and skills to manage and operate world class studio facilites to the screen-based industries The
course was supported by Creative Skillset's Film Skills Fund, with BFI's Film Forever Nabonal Lottery funds The Group also
has & well-developed work apprenticeship scheme providing 'in work’ apprenticeships in areas such as plumbing, carpentry and
media apprentices The Company currently has 12 apprentices whose training i1s paid for by the Apprenticeship Levy

Pinewood's commitrment to skills and training was acknowledged by winning the Apprentice and Young Person Employer of the
Year Award at the 2018 Buckinghamshire Business Awards



Pinewood Group Limited

Directors' Report (continued)
Branches outside of the United Kingdom

The Group operates through vanous subsidiary unéenakings in vanous junsdictions as disclosed in Note 4 to the Parent
Company financial statements The Company does not have any branches as defined by Section 1046{3) of the Companies
Act 2006

Going Concern

As outlned within the Strategic Report on page §, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources o continue In operational existence for the foreseeable fulure Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting In prepanng the financial statements, as there are no matenat unceraintes related to events or conditions that
may cast doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern

Other Diractors’ Report Disclosure Reguiroments

Certain disclosures required by s414C(11) of the Companies Act 2006 to be included 1n the Directors Report have been
ncluded elsewhere 1n this Annual Repor, as follows

* Principal activities - Strategic Report, page 2

+ Principal nsks and uncertainties - Strategic Report, pages 5-6
- Post balance sheet events - Strategic Report, page &

« Indreation of future developments - Strategic Report, page 6

Directors® Statement as to Disclosure of Information to Auditor

The Directors who were members of the Board at the time of approving the Directors’ report are listed on page 6 Having made
enquines of fellow Directors and of the Group’s auditor, each of these Directars confirms that

4] To the best of each Director's knowledge and belief, there 1s no information relevant to the
preparation of their report of which the Group's auditor 1s unaware, and

o Each Director has taken all the steps a Director might reasonably be expected to have taken {o be aware
of relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditor 1s aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted In accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act
2006

Deloitte LLP have expressed ther willingness to continue in offce as auditors and a resolution to reappoint them wili be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

Bridget Sheldon-Hill
Company Secretary
268 June 2018



Pinewood Group Limited

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with apphcable law and regulatons

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have
elected to prepare the financal statements i accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) including FRS 102 "The Finanaial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland tnder company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satsfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss for that penod In
preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to

o select sutable accounting policies and then apply themn consistently,
[s] make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

[+] state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained n the financial statements, and

] prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t (s inappropnate 1o presume that
the Group and the Company will continue In business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasenable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2008 They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties




Pinewood Group Limited

Independent Auditor's Report
to the Members of Pinewood Group Limited

Opinion

In our opinion the financial staternents

= give a true and faw view of the state of the group's and of the parent company’s affars as at 31 December 2018 and of the
group's profit for the year then ended,

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice including Financial
Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reperting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland”, and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

We have audited the financial statements of Pinewood Group Limited (the ‘parent company’) and its subsidianes (the ‘group’}
which comprise

= the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income,

« the Group Statement of Financial Position,

= the Group Statement of Cash Flows,

= the Group Statement of Changes in Equity,

- the related notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 1 to 26,

« the Parent Company Statement of Financial Position,

« the Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity, and

= the related notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements 1 to 12

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation i1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 "The Finanoial Reporting Standard apphcable m the UK and Repubhc of
Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Prachce)

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs {(UK)) and applicable law Our
responsibilities under those standards are further descnbed in the auditor's responsibiities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled our cther ethical
responsibilities (n accordance with these requirements We believe that the audit ewdence we have cbtained 1s sufficent and
appropnate to provide a basis for our opiion

Conclusions relating to going concern

We are required by ISAs (UK} to report in respect of the following matters where

« the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of the financial statements is not appropnate, or

« the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any Wentified matenal uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
about the group’s or the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at
least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for 1ssue

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Other information

The drrectors are responsible for the other information  The other mformation compnses the information mcluded in the annual
report, other than the financial staternents and our auditor's report thereon Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the ather information and, except to the extent otherwise exphcitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respensibility 15 to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information 1s matenally iInconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge cbtaned in the
audit or otherwise appears to be matenally misstated If we wdentify such matenal inconsistencies or apparent matenal
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there 1s a matenal misstaternent in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other infermation If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 15 a matenal
misstatement of thus other information, we are required to report that fact

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

10



Pinewood Group Limited

Independent Auditor's Report (continued)
to the Members of Pinewood Group Limited

Responsibilities of direstors

As explaned more fully In the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intermal control as the directors
determine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due
1o fraud or error

In prepanng the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company’s abilty to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to iquidate the group or the parent company or 1o cease operations, or have no
reahstic altemative but to do so

Auditor's responsibifities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from materiat
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 18sue an auditor's report that includes our opinion Reasonable assurance 1S
a high level of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a
matenal misstatement when it exists Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are considered matenal if, indiwvdually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to infiuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statermnents

A further descnption of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 1s located on the Financial Repeorting
Council's website at www.frc org uk/audtorsresponsibiiies. This description forms part of our auditer's report

Use of our report

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to
state to them in an audnor's report and for no other purpose  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit

« the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 15 consistent with the financal statements, and

» the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared In accordance with applicable legal requirements

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their environment obtained 1n the
course of the audit, we have not identified any materiat misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Compamies Act 2006 we are required to report in respact of the following matters if, in our opinion

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us,; or

« the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

« certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

« we have not received all the informaticn and explanations we require for our audit

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Ads Coonr .

Andrew Evans (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Audttor

Reading

United Kingdom

26 June 2018



Pinewood Group Limited

Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Year ended 31 March 2018

Notes £000

Turnover 2 81,663
Cost of Sales {42,933)
Gross profit 38,730
Seling & Dhstribution costs {2,118)
Administrative expenses

Recurning acilvities {7.668)

Exceptional items 3 549
Total administrative expenses {7,119)
Operating profit 4 29,493
Compnising.
Operating profit/(logs) from-
Media Services activibes before exceptional items 29,849
Media Investment - film produchion companies {267}
Media Investment - other (648}
Exceptional items 3 549

25,493

Income from participating
interests 8 3,064
Other interest recenable
and sirular income g 3,773
Interest payable and
similar expenses 10 (6,067)

Profit on ordinary activities
befare taxation 30,263

Tax on profit on ordinary
activities 11 {5,905)

Prefit on ordinary activities
after taxation attributable to

equity sharehclders 24,358

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on franslation of foreign operations

on consolidation (554)
Total comprehensive income for the year 23,804

The notes on pages 16 to 38 form part of these financial statements
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Year ended 31 March 2017
£000

98,348
(63,854)
34,494
(2,258)
{10,155)

{3,170}
(13.325)

18911

24,095
(2,164)
150
(3.170)
18,911

1,082
344

{5,294)
15,043

{1.436)

13,607

1,340
14,947



Pinewood Group Limited

Group Statement of Financial Positien

as at 31 March 2018

Assets

Non current assefs
intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Interests in joind ventures
Other investments

Current assels
Inventones
Trade and other receivables:
Lue within one year
Due afier more than cne year
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity and labillities
Share capital

Share premium

Capital redemplion reserve
Merger reserve

Translalion reserve
Retained sarmings

Total equity

Non-current labilities
Interest-beanng loans and barrowings
Dernvative financial instruments
Peferred tax liabilties

Currani ifabliitias
Trade and other payables

TFotal liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Notes

13
14

15

17
17
18

18

21
22
11

23

2018
£000

3,924
233,441
10,971
1,680

250,016

61

20,599
129,045
43,043

196,748

448,764

5741

76,696

135

348

786

65,277
YT

246,123
1,781
3,115

251,019

48,762
45,762

289,781
448,764

18,749

28,464
48,266
297 770

137,129

101,066
3,687
2,227

105,980

53,661
53,661
160,841
297,770

The financial statements of Pinewood Group Limited (registered number 03889552) were approved and authonsed for Issue

by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2018. T
a

€ J Naisby ¢ : W}X

Directer

The notes on pages 16 to 38 forr part of these financial staterments.

hey were signed on its behalf by:

13
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Pinewood Group Limited

Group Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit on ordmary activitres before taxation

Adiustments to reconciie profit on ordinary achivilies before tavation tc net cash Hows
Depreciation impairment and amortisation ¢
Loss on disposal of preperty  plant and equipment .
Fair value adjustment on PMEBS Holdings

Income from participating interests {
Irterest recevable and similar income :
Interest payable and similar charges 1
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital

{Increaze) ‘decrease In trade and other receivables
{Increase) in inventornes

iDecrease)increase n trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations

interest paid

Interest receved

Corporation tax recewved in respect aof FPC activity
Corperation tax pad

Net cash flow from operating activities

Cash flow used in investing activities:
Purchase of property plant and equipment
Maovement in long term liabity

Investment in jomt ventures

Jaint venture land sale proceeds
Repayment from joint ventures

Loans made to parent undertakings

Net cash flow used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Divdends paid

Proceeds from 1ssue of loan notes

Repayment of assel financing obligations

Repayment of bank borrowings .
Proceeds from bank borrowings N
Payment cf loan 13s5ue fees

Net cash flow from financing activities

Net increase In cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

2018 2017
£'000 £000
30,263 15043
9,371 8,885
54 -
(460) (3 488)
(3.064) {1 082)
(3.773) (344)
6,067 5,294
38,458 24310
(8,156) 931
{8} (8}
(6,670) 9 656
23,624 34971
(2,587) (4,298)
56 -

- 4473
(2.809) 12, 243)
18,284 32 903
(7.736) {30 348)

- 785

{198) (1 908)

- 1187

1,533 1841
(127,474) -
(133,873) (28 461)
(11,950 (3514
250,000 -
(870) (747)
(100,000} -
- 27 000
(7.012) -
130,168 22 6539
14,579 27 ¢81
28,464 1383
43,043 78 464

Included wathin the cash and cash equvalents batance s a total of £2°0 000 (2017 7 162 000) which 15 unavallable for general

use See Note 18

The notes on pages 16 to 38 form part of these finansial statements



Pinewood Group Limited

Reconcihaticn of Movement in Net Debt

for the year ended 31 March 2018 2018 2017
£:000 £'000
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 14,579 27,081
Repayments of bank borrowings 100,000 -
Proceeds from bank borrowings - {27,000}
Proceeds from issue of loan notes {250,000} -
Repaymenis of asset financing obligations 780 747
Loan 1ssue costs 7,643 -
Amortisation of loan 1ssue costs (438) (649)
Interest accrued on loan notes {3,042) -
Movement in net debt {130,478} 179
Net debt at the start of the year {72,602) (72,781
Net debt at the end of the year (203,080} (72,802}
Net debt at end of year excluding restricted cash {203,470y {74,087)
Group Statement of Chianges in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2018
Translation
Share capital Share premium reserve Other reserves  Retaned earmings  Total equity
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 01 Aprii 2017 5,741 76 896 1,330 483 52 869 137,128
Profit for the year - - - 24 358 24,358
Transiation reserve movement - - (554) - - (554)
Total comprehensive income for
the year - (554) - 24 358 23804
Equity dividends (Note 12) - - - - (11,950 {11,950)
At 31 March 2018 5,741 76,696 786 483 65,277 148,983
At 01 Apnil 2016 5,741 76 686 483 42 876 125 796
Profit for the year - - - 13,607 13,807
Translalion reserve movement - 1,240 - - 1,340
Total comprehensive income for
the year - 1,340 - 13 607 14 047
Equity dwidends (Note 12) - - (3,614 (3,614)
At 31 March 2017 5741 76 696 1,340 483 52 869 137,129

The notes on pages 16 to 38 form part of these financial statemetr



Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Pinewood Gioup Limited (' the Company"} 1s a private company limtef by shares inco
registered office 1s located at Pinewoed Studios Pinewocd Road Ive Heath, Bucking!

The Group's principal actvities and the nature of ts operations are o taled 1N the Stret

1 Accounting poticies

The principal 2ccounting policies are summarnised below They rave all been apy
year and prior year

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance * ath FRS 102 'T1.
appheable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ ("FRS 102" and t' 2 requiremeants «
provisicns of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts an
hustorical cost convention modified to include the revaluation of freehold propert
nstruments at fair value

The financial statements are presented in Starling, which 1s alse the functional ©
in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest whote * 1,000 except w

Going concern

In assessing the going concern basis the Directors considered he Group s busr
Group and the Group s financial risk management objectives ar d pohcies  The
capital requirements through its bank faciliies  The Group ¢ for 2casis and proje
possible changes iy trading performance, ecanonic uncertainty and Brexit sho
within the leve! of its current facithes The Directors having ma le appropriate ¢
adequate resources to continue In the operatioral business for “he foreseeable f
adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the fnanaial statemr nts

Basis of conseclidation

The consohdated financial statemenis comprise the iinancial st tements of the ¢
2018 Alhinfragroup transactions balances, income and exper =es are eliminat-
are cansohdated for the financial year ending 31 March 2013 renardiess of the
Individual entitries wathin the Group that have a funchional currer oy other than st
consolidated financial statements may be presented

arated and domiciled in England  The
imshire SLO ONH

aic Report on page 2

ed consistently throughout the current

fmancial Reporting Standard

she Companies Act 2006 Including the
Reports) Regulations 2008, and under
s and to include certamn financial

rency of the Group Monetary amounts
re gtherwise mdicated

235 activities  the financial position of the
oup meets its day-to-day working

1c0ns  taking account of reasonably

hat the Group will be able to cperate
wines constder that the Group has

ur > and have therefore continued te

~up and its subsidianes up to 31 March
~in full or conschdation All subsidiaries
widual entiies’ statutory reporting date
ing are translated to sterling so that the



Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2018

1 Accounting policies (¢continued)

Turniover

Turnover is recogrised to the extent that it 13 probable that © 12 economic bencfits will flow 1o the Group and the turnover
can be relabty measured Turnover 1s measured at the far . alue of the consileration recelvable, net of discounts

rebates VAT and other sales taxes or duty The Group has zssessed 18 urnaver arrangements and has concluded that i
15 acting as a principal in all of its turnover arrangements b /here a contract spans an accounting cut-off date, the value of
the turnover recagnised 1s the tme proportion of the total vz e of the contract completed by the cut-off date The
following specific recogmtion cntera apply

Media Services
o Film customers utise services for a peaod of hme Turnuover is recognised as the
Group earns the right to consideration 1231 the service proyided and this 1s ime apportioned and
earned as hme elapses

o Film turnover is also dernved from inter ational consultancy agreements and sales ang
marketing agreements Revenue I1s rec..gnised on a stage of completion basis by reference to
costs incurred for the former, and base 1 on the passage of tme for the latter

o Television turnover 1s denved from the rowision of senices and is recogrised on & e
apperticned basis in relation to the tele .sion produchon pracess

© Media Hub turmnover is derved from cu- .omers contracting to use the Group s facilities
for a perod of time Turnover 1s récogn -ed on a straight .ine basis over the term of the agreement

tMedia investment
o Exiernal investment advisory turnover 1 - derived from the provision of services on a per
film investrment basis with turnover fron 1 an annual man: gement fee recogmsed on a straight ling
basis over the course of the year

o Fim Preduction Companes’ turnover roates 1o the funding provided from the vanous
financiers (excluding loans against tax 1adit, which are 1:cognised as a fiabiity on the Group
statement of financial pasiion) Turnov r recogised 1s the proportion of completion of the relevant
project

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate (f exchange at the date of the transaction Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balar -2 sheet date are reported at the rates of exchange prevailing
at that date

The results of overseas operations are translated at the ave age rates of exchange duning the peried and thair balance
sheets at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date Exchar je differences an<ing on translation of the opening net assets
and results of overseas operations are reported in other cor prehensive iInceine and accumulated in eguity {attributed to
non-controling interests as appropriate)

Other exchange differences are recognised in profit of loss 1 the peried In whach they anse except for
0 exchange differences ansing on gains o losses on non-monetary items which are recognised in other
comprehensive INCome,

O Unreahsed gains or losses are recagnr -d m ather comp’ ehensive mcome, and

o In the case of the consolidated financia statements, exchange differences on menetary items
recelvable from or payable to a foreign peration for which settlement 15 neither planned nor likely to
oceur {therefore formung part of the net nvestment in the fareign operation), which are recognised
other comprehensive income and reponied under equity

Employee benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised # » a liability and an expense unless those costs are required to
be recognised as part of the cost of stock or are capitalised -3 an intangible fixed asset or a tangible fixed asset

The cost of any unused entitlement i1s recognised i the per d In which the employee's services are received
The best estimate of the expenditure required to settle an o igation for termimation benefits 1s recognised iImmediately as

an expense when the Group Js demenstrably committed to  :rminate the empioyment of an emgloyee or to provide
termination benefits



Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {(cont'nued)
for the year ended 31 March 2018

1 Accounting policies {continued)

Pensions and other post-employment benefits
The Group operates a defined contribution scheme  Contnibutic 's are charged t the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme

interest recefvable and payable
Interest recewable and payable s recogrused using the effectiv interest rate m '1od

Corporation tax

Corporation tax expense reprasents the sum of the tax currenth payable  The ta- currently payablée 1s based on taxable
profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as report :d in the mcome < latement because 1t excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further ex- udes items that are never taxable or
deductible The Group s hability for current tax s calculated usi1g lax rates that . ave been enacted or substantively
enacted by the statement of financial position date

Corporation tax relating to terns recognised directly m equity 15 -ecognised in ot + 7 comprehensive income and the
statement of changes 1N equity and not in the Income statement

Daferred tax
Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to ¢ pply to the penc + vhen the asset s realised or the hability
15 settled based on tax rates that have been enacted or substar tively enacted b+ *he reporting date

Deferred tax habihties are recognised in respect of all iming diff ~rences that exi- at the reporting date Timing differences
are differences between taxable profits and total comprehensive income that arni-  from the incluston of mcome and
expenses In tax assessments in different penods from their recc gnition in the fin- ial statements Deferred tax assets
are recogmsed only 1o the extent that it 1s probable that they wil' be recovered br *hz reversal of deferred tax habidiies or
other future taxable profits

Deferred tax 1s recognised on income and expenses from subst flaries associat  branches and interests n jointly
conlrolled entities  that will be assessed to or allow for tax n a f iture peuod exco twhere the company 15 able to control
the reversal of the timing difference and it 13 probable that the timing difference + | not reverse 1n the foreseeable future

Film tax credits

Film tax credits are recogmised in profit or loss for the penod e with the cost in-rred over the penod of a film project
Where the rate of expenditure mcurred Is not proportionate 1o B e rate of qualifyr j expenditure the difference in film tax
credits 1s accrued or deferred on the Group statement of financi al position

Film investments

Film imvestments are classified as investments at farr value anc due to the uncert ainty of return on nvestment are typically
determined to have a £nil farr value The Group reviews the fair value at least ar ually  Any nst changes in farr value are
recognised N the ncome statement

Intangible assefs
Intangible assets, when identified are capitalised at cost and subsequently amo' sed over ther useful economic life



Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2018

1

Accounting policies {continued)

Goodwill

Goadwill on acquisition is initially measured at cost being th  excess of the cost of the business combination over the
acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable ass-is liabilihes and contingent llabiities  Following inhial
recagnifion, goodwill 15 measured al cost less any amorlisat on or accumulated Impairment foss  Goodwill 1S expected to
have a useful Ife of 10 years and 1s amortised over that peri.d Goodwili 1s feviewed for impairment annually or more
frequently If events or changes in circumstances indicate the t the carrying value may be impawred For the purpese of
imparrment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to the related cash janerating unt manitored by management  Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 1s less than the carying amount, including goodwill, an iImpairment loss 1s
recognised in the income statement

Froperty, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost to the Gro » less accumulated depreciation and any imparment loss
Cost comprises the aggregate amount paid and the fair vall  of any other consideration given 1o acquire the asset and
includes costs directly atiributable to making the asset cape .2 of operating a+ intended Depreciation s caleulated on all
property, plant and equipment ather than land, from the im  they are avalakle for use on a straight ine basis over the
estimated useful ife as follows

Freehold buldings - S0 years

Freehald improvements - 51025 years

Leasehold improvements - sherter of 25 years or the term of the lease
Fixtures, fittings and equipment - 31010 years

Land and assets under construction are not depreciated

The carrying value of freehold land and buildings within Pre. warty, plant and € Juipment’ in the statement of financial
position 1s hased on external valuations undertaken by an 1 1ependent firm or Chartered Surveyors in February 2000 (as
amended n January 2001) and November 2000 on each o . asion to establiz N the fair values of the Pinewood Studios
and Shepperton Studios businesses acquired  Subsequent 1o these valuations, which established the cost to the Group
of freehold land and buwldings, additions, disposals and depi =ciation have becn recorded in ine with Group accounting
policies

The carrying value of property plant and equipment is revie  ad for impairme.t f events or changes in crcumstances
indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable and 15 v (tten dowit immediately (o the recoverable amount Uselul
ives and residual values are reviewed annually and where . Jusiments are - quired, these are made prospactively

Antem of property, plant and equipment 1s derecagnised u; on cisposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to anse from the continued use of the asset  Any jam or loss ansing in de-recognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and th. carrying amount of the item) 1s Included in the income
statement in the year the iterm s derecognmsed

Interests n joint ventures
The Group has interests in joint ventures A joint venpture is + joint arrangeme 1t whereby two or more parties that have
joint contral of the arrangement have nghts to the net asset of the arrangem:nt

The Group accounts for joint ventures under the eguity met od  Under the equity methad, a joint venture is initially
recognised in the Group statement of financial position at ¢o-t and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group s incorme
from participating inferests and other comprehensive incom. of the joint venture  When the Group's share of losses of
the jaint venture exceeds the Group's Interest in that joint venture the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses Addtional losses are only recognised to the extent 1 at the Group ha . incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behaif of the joint venture

When a Group entity ransacts wath a joint venture of the Gi up profits and lesses resulting from the transactions with the

joint venture are recognised in the Group's consaldated fin ncial statements Jnly to the extent of interests in the joint
venture that are not related to the Group

19



Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued}
for the year ended 31 March 2018

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Long-ferm assets
Costs (ncurred in the establishment of long term agreements ar capitalised on* 2 statement of financial position and
categorised as fong-term assets

These costs are reviewed at least annually for any impairrment m therr carrying v u2 and once the long-term agreement
becomes operational the costs are amortised over the term of t'e agreement

Impairment costs and amortisation are expensed to the Group 1 \come statemer *

Inventortes
Inventory 1s vatued at the lower of cost and estimated selling pr ;e less costs to ¢ wplete and sell Inventory held for

distnbution at ne or nominal consideration 1s measured at cost 1djusted where = plicable for any loss of service potential,
1 & benefits expected from use or sale of the inventory Costis ietermined using he weaighted average cost

At each reporting date, the group assesses whether inventory areimpaired or if 1 imparment {0ss recognised in prior
penods has reversed Any excess of the carrying amount of sto -k over its estim.- =d selling price less costs to complete
and sall 1s recogmsed as an impairment loss in profit or loss

Reversals of imparrment losses are also recognised in profit or 1oss

Impawrment of assets

The Group assesseas at each reperting date whether there 1s an \ndwation that = asset may be impared If any such
indication exists or when annual impairment testing for an asse’ 1s required the roup rmakes an estimate of the assets
recoverable amount An asset s recoverable amount is the higt er of an assets - cash-generating umts {CGU ) farr
value less costs o sell and its value 1n use and Is determined for an individual 2 2t unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other as=ets or groups of 1ssets Where the carrying amount of
an asset or CGlJ exceeds 1ts recoverable amount the asset 1s  onsidered impar  d and 1s wntten down to its recoverable
amount In assessing value in use the estimated future cash fl ws are discourts d to therr present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the tirw value of mono  and the risks specific to the asset  In
determining farr value less costs to sell an appropnate vatuation model s used

Fmancial instruments
Financial assets and financral rabibbies are recognised when the Group become 3 party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument

Financial habities and equity instruments are classified according to the substarr e of the contractual arrangements
entered into An equity nstrument 1s any contract that evidence  a restdual 1ntzi= -t 1n the assets of the Group after
deducting ail of s habilities

Fnancial assels and fabiities

All financial assets and llabilities are imitially measured at transe shion price (incl - ng transaction costs) except for those
financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss  vhich are imbaly neasured at farr value (which 1s normalty
the transaction price excluding transaction costs) unless the ar angement const ates a financing transaction If an
arrangement constitutes a finance transaction the financial ass :t or financial ia' 1ty 15 measured at the present value of
the future payments discounted at 2 market rate of interest for & similar debt inst- iment

Financial assets are derecogmsed when and only when a) the ¢ontractual nights 12 the cash flows from the financial asset
expwe or are settled b) the Group transfers to ancther party su'"stantially all of it : nsks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset or ¢) the Group despite having retamed some = gnificant nsks ar | rewards of ownership has transferred
control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability * sell the asset in its entirety to an
unrelated third party and 15 able to exercise that abihty unilatera'ly and without n< ding to impose additional restnictions on
the transfer

Financial habilities are derecognised only when the obhigation s; saified 1n the ¢co ract s discharged, cancelled or expires



Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2018

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

investments

Investments in non-convertible preference shares and non-' uttable crdinary «r preference shares (where shares are
publicly traded or ther fair value 1s reliably measurable} are reasured at far  alue through profit or loss Where farr value
cannot be measured reliably, investments are measured at st less impairment

in the Company statement of financial pesition for investms its in subsicianes acquired for consideration ncluding the
1issue of shares qualifying for merger relief, cost 1s measuren py reference to the nominal value only of the shares 1ssuad
Any premium is ignored

Equaty instriments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recarded at * e farr value of proceeds receved, cash or other 1esources
recerved or receivable net of direct 1ssue costs

Fair value measurement

The best evidence of farr value 13 a quoted price for an den cal asset 1n an ative markel When quoted prices are
unavaillable the price of a recent transaction for an identica, asset provides e sidence of fair value as long as there has not
been a significant change in economic circumstances or a & nificant lapse of ime since the transaction tock place If the
market 1s not active and recent transactions of an 1gentical ..~set on their own are not a good estimate of farr value, the
Company estimates the fair value by using a valuation tecth 'que

interest-hbearng loans and borrowings

Obligations for loans and borrowings are recognised when 112 Group become s party to the related contracts and are
measured intially at the fair values of consideration receive. less directly attnoutable transaction costs  After iuhal
recognition, interest-beanng loans and borrowings are subs -quently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, allocating the interest Income or interest & ,anse over the relevant period

Denvabve fingncial mstruments

The Group has interest rate swaps to hedge against risks a- »ociated with int. rest rate fluctuations Denvatives are imitially
recognised at fair value at the date a dervative contract 1s L atered into and a+@ subsequéntly re-measured to their fair
value at each statement of financial position gate  The Gro p reporls the mo rement in far value through profit or loss

The far values of the interest rate swap contracts are deternuned by reference to market values for similar instruments

A denvative with a positive farr value 1s recognised as a fine «wial asset whereas a dernvative wath a negative fair value 1s
recogrised as a financial habiity A derivative 1s presented s a non-current asset or hakubty If the remaining matunty of
the instrument 1s mare than 12 months and it 1s not expecte 1 10 be realised or settled wattun 12 months  Other dervatives
are presented as current assets or current habilites

Pravisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present o1 igation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 1s
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be require i to setile the obigation and a relable estimate can be made
of the amount of the cbligation

If the effect of the bme value of money 18 matenal, provisior. . are determined oy discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax raia that reflects current market assessm: nts of the time value of money and where appropriate, the
risks specific to the habiity Where discounting 1s used, the -crease In the provision due to the passage of time 15
recogrmsed as interest and similar charges
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont'nued)
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Accounting policies (continued)

Leases

The Group as lessee - finance leases

An asset and corresponding liability are recognrsed for leasing ' greements that
of the risks and rewards incrdental to ownership ( finance lease .} The amount
asset or If lower the present value of the mimimum lease paym =nts payahle dur
inception of the lease Lease payments are treated as consistingg of capital and -~ -
to profit or loss so as to produce a constant percdic rate of Inte 2st on the reman
rents are expensed as incurred

Capitahized leased assets are depreciatad over the shorter of th 2 estimated uset

The Group as lessee - pperating leases

All other leases are operating leases and the annual rentals are charged to pref*
lease term  Rent free perods or other incentives received for & itenng into an ¢
reduction to the expense and are recogmsed on a straight-line oasis over the &

The Group as lessor - operating leases

Rental Income from assets leased under operating Ieases 1s rec aognised on a str
as Media Services turnover Rent free penods or other ncentive s given to the fe
the rental sncome and recogmised on a straight-line basis over t1e 'ease term

Significant accounting judgements. estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the Group s financial statements requires m. nagement to m=
assumptions that affect reported amounts at the end of the year

There are no criical judgements apart from those involving est mations (which
Dnectors have made in the process of applying the Gioup's accounting polices
future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the rej orting date are

Fair value of nvestment in PMBS Holdings Limited

The Group's Investment in the equity and loan notes of PMBS t cldings Limited

1ssued equity and loan notes equal to a 15% share of the debt « nd equity of PIvi
investment was made At each reporting date management ma' £ an estimate ¢
lgan notes and the value of the equntv iInvestment

tn determining the fair value of the loan notes management revi sw the future ca-
and in determirung the fair value of the equity holding managen 2nt perform a ve
cashflow model The key inputs in respect of the discounted ca* hflow model are

cashflows and the annual growth factor applied  In the case of *he foan notes th
annum and management considers this 1o be a market rate of interest and as s

details are ncluded In Note 16

An adverse movement of 17% on the discount factor or a1 407 reduction on thr
applied to the equity would result in an impairment and could ro sult in the recovs
considered doubtful

S106 habiity

In order to facilitate the construction of Pinewood East the Groiip entered into #
Buckinghamsture County Counal Under this agreement the Grup must pay for
Five Points roundabout These improvements, the implementat un of which the
Buckinghamshire County Council have been estimated and cajdahsed at cost |
and equipment 1s E4m (2017 £4my and £4m (2017 £4m) respe stvely relating -

Atlanta jomt venture

The Group & Investment in the Atlanta Jomnt Venture s accountr d for using the ¢
has performed an impairment review of the asset calculating a safue in use thre

mode! Key inputs into the model are the expected levels of occapancy of the st
factor applied The assumptons appliied to these factors suppe tthe carrymg v !
facters may have an impact on that value

Fixed Asset Usefid Econamic Lives

The Group has fixed gesets held at amortised cost the total co 1 of whichs £3
depreciation 18 £67 1m and the charge for the period 1s £8 8in I' the average us
reduced by 15% the charge would increase by £1 6m

Other estimates assumptions and judgements are applied by th e Group Thesr-
and provisions for mpairmenis of assets These estmates ass ametons and il
continual hass but are not sigmficant

e
3%

nsfar to the Company substantially all
‘nitahsed 15 the far value of the leased
g the lease term baoth determined at
arest elements The interest s charged
g balance of the ability Contingent

i I'e of the asset or the lgase term

i loss on a straight line basis over the
rating lease are accounted foras a
©term

Aht-hne basis over the term of the lease
«oe are accounted for as a reduction to

2 Judgeinents estimates and

. 2 d=alf with sepaiately betow), that the

he key assumptrons concerning the

held at farr value The Group was
3 Holdings Linuted when the initial
1¢ farr value of both the value of the

flows attributable to those loan notes
‘£ 1P USe exercise using a discounted
1e discount factor the projected annual
o are interest beanng at 8% per

1 are discounted at that rate Further

annual cashflows of PMBS when
ahihty of the loan notes being

ection 106 agreement with

affic improvements at the tver Heath
oup 15 currently 1n discussion with
cluded i accruals and plant property
this agreement

ity accountmg method Management
3h application of a discounted cashfiow
Yin space the price and the discount

1 of the asset A movernent in these

2m at 31 March 2018 Accumulated
ul emonomic life of the assets was

wlade, hut are not mited to, accruals
~ems are also evaluated on a



Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (c.:ntinued)
for the year ended 31 March 2018

2 Turnover and segment information
Turnover by operating segment
The Group identifies its operating segments based on a cor mnation of factors including the nature and type of service
provided and differences in regulatory environment  Opera’ g segments are aggregated where there 1s a nigh degree of
consistency across these factors, and the segments have s dar econonmic craractenstics Operating segments are
reported in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting ¢ uvided to the chi sf aperating decision maker
The Group has determined It has two reportable segments Jedia Services which provides studio and related services to
the film, lelewsion and wider creative industnes and Media nvestment which provides content investment and

production services, principally to the film industry

Segment data for the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 - presented below

2018 2017

£'000 £°000
Turnover by segment
Media services 79,979 76 709
Media investment 1,973 22 266
Total segmental turnaver 81,952 98,975
Intersegment ehmination {288} (827)
Group turnover 81,663 98 348

The Group has histancally had twa reporting segrments — M dia Services which provides studio faciliies and related
services o the screen-based industnes and Media investn it which provids sainvestment funding and production
services to the screen-based industnes

fn fine with its strategy to focus on the core business, 0 70%  the Group ceas i certain activites namely, the Media
Investment segment activities and Pinewood Creative and « _id its entire inter=st in the Pinewood TV joint venture

The ceased activites do not meet the definion of discontin.=d cperations as they have not been disposed of
Turnover by geographical region

Although turnover continues to anse predominantly In the U ied Kingdom, boing the Group s country of domicile the
Group's international activity continues to Increase

2018 2017
£'000 £'000

United Kingdom 78,975 B6 865
Nerth America 1,308 1282
Asia 1,028 1.741
Rest of tha World 352 8.360
81,663 98,348

Non current assets by geographical region

The only non current asset domiciied outside of the UK 1S th - interest in jaint ventures with a carrying value of £11 0m
{2017 £7 8m) see note 8

Turnover by major customers
Turnover from one Media Services customer, operating thrc ugh several sepa ate subsidiaries of £35 7m (year ending 31

March 2017 £30 6m) was recogrised In the year No other ingle customer ¢ intributed 10% or more of the Group's
turnover In either 2017 or 2018

23



Pinewood Group Limited
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2 Turnover and segment information {continued}

Year ended 31 March 2078

Year ended 31 March 2017

Media Media Media
Services Investment Total .oraces Media Investment Total
Notes £000 £000 £'000 aoo £000 £000
Turnover 79,690 1,973 81.663 5052 22 266 98 248
Cost of Sales (41,367) (1 566) 142,933) 1170) (22,384} (63 854)
Gross profit/{loss) 38,323 407 38,730 4012 {118) 34,494
Distnibution costs {2,118) - (2.118) 2.258) (2,258)
Admunistrative expenses
Recurring activities (6,356) {1.312) {7,668) 3 259) {1898} (10,155)
Exceptional items 3 549 - 549 3170) - (3.170)
Total adimristrative expenses {5.807) (1,312) (7,119) 1429 (1808) (13 325)
Operating profit/{loss) 4 30,398 {305) 29.493 SO {2 014 18,911
Compnising
Onperating profit/{loss) from
Media Services activities before
exceptional tems 28,849 - 29,849 4095 - 24,095
Media Investment - FPCs - {257) {257) (2,164) (2,164}
Media Investment - other - {648) {648) - 150 150
Exceptional tems 2 549 - 549 3170) (3.170)
30,398 {905) 29,493 PIEES 12.014) 18,911
Income from participating
nterests 8 3,064 - 3,064 132 - 1082
Other interest recervable
and sumilar income 9 3773 R 3,773 44 _ 344
Interest payable and
similar expenses 10 {6,067) - (6.067) 5 204) - 15.294)
Profit{loss} on ordinary 31.188 {905) 30,263 T OR7 (Z014) 15043
Tax on profit(loss) on
ordinary activilies 1 {6,162) 257 (5.805) 3 B3N 2195 (1,438}
Profti/(loss} on ordinary
activities after taxation 25,006 (648) 24,358 2426 131 13 607




Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2018

3

Exceptional items of (income)expense

2018 2017

£'000 £000
Release of rent free accrual (912) -
Stratedic review - 4045
Restructuring and management consultancy 823 2774
PMBS Holdings Limited (460} (3 486)
Technicolour lease surrender - 163

25 — 3T

Relgase of rent free accrual

Pinewaood Studio Wales signed an agreement for lease for 1@ Welsh Studias on 16 July 2014 The agreement was for a
15 year lease with 2 years rent free In line with accounting  unvention Pinewdod accrued the applicable proportion of the
full rent duning this rent free period Following the decision &, exit the Welsh & tudios this rent1s no longer payable and has
been released as an exceptional income statement durnng tr .. period

Straltegic revievs
On 10 February 2016 the company announced that it had & .ointed Rothsch id & Co to advise on a strategiC 1eview of
the Company Expenses incurred in the year 1o 31 March 2 .7 relate to profcssional fees and were £4 Om

Restructuning and management consuitancy

Restructuning reorgamsation costs of £0 8m (year ended 31 [Aarch 2017 £2 «m) relate to a performance mprovement
review and streamiming and changes to the management s1 ucture, as well a- costs in relation to Pinewcod Television
Limited and Pinewood Media Guarantars Limited

PMB3 Holdings Limited

The Company has a 15% interest in PMBS Holdings Limiter The Company reviewed the carrying value of its interast in
the equity and loan notes at the 31 March 2018 The farr va ¢ gain recorded in the penod ended 31 March 2018 1In
respect of the equity and loan notes was £0 5m (2017 £3 &

Technucolor lease stirrender

Bunng the year ending 31 March 2016 the company accept | a surrender of the lease to Technicelor The net inceme
from the lease surrender after related expenses, was Entl {, ar ending 31 M, rch 2017 £0 2m)

Operating profit/{loss)

2018 2017
Operating profit/(loss} s stated after charging/{crediting) £000 £'000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8,811 8111
Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment 54 -
Qperating lease payments 1,224 1259
Arnortisation of goodwilt 560 560
Amorhsation of long-term assets - 166
Net foreign exchange losses/{gains) {18) (10)
Stock
- amounts expensed to cost of sales 110 63
- imparment losses recognised in cost of sales - -
Auditor's remuneration
2018 2017

The analysis of auditor's remuneration 15 as follows £'000 £000
Fees payable to Group's auditor far the audit of Parent
Company and Group financial statements 48 48
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates
for the audit of the Company's subsidianies 130 105

Total audit fees 178 153
Fees payable to the Group's audilor and 1ts associates
for other services
Audit-related assurance services - -
Other assurance services 297 10
Taxation adwisory services - 14

Total fees for other services 297 24

Total fees N v I I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cont'nued)

for the year ended 31 March 2018

]

Staff costs and numbers

Staff costs including Directors

Salanes

Social secunity costs
Pansion costs

Long term incentive plan

Compensation for loss of office

Other ermnployee benefits

Average monthly number of employeas,
including Executive Directors.

Management
Operaharal
Administration
Executive
Technical
Sales

Directors' emoluments

Salaries
FPension costs
Long term incentive plan

Compangation for loss of oifice

Other employee benefls

The number of directors to whom retirement benefits are accru g under defined

T he emoiuntents of the highest paid director wereg £308 000 (2017 £1 515 GOD)

(2017 £20 000y

5032

2018
n nhers

20
0

K
&

112
27

18
623

The Directors are considered to be the anly key management ¢ rsenne!

No share options have besn held by any Directors n the penod

Amourts pand to third parties i relatron to Directors services in 'he peiod are £

T 2017 £0 Zmy

2017
£'000

12,233
1,285
888
752
2034
303

17475

2007
nurmbers

2007
£'000

1341
225
2028

24
3673

ontribunon schemes was 3 (2017 3}

en3ions condibutions were £20 000



Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (c
for the year ended 31 March 2018

8 interests in joint ventures

As at 31 March 2018 and at 31 March 2017 the Group had

Joint Venture Name
Pinewoocd Atlanta LLC
PAS Holdings Fayette ILLC

"PAS" - collectively Pinewood Atlanta LLC and PAS Holdin
"PTV" - Pinewood Televisien Limited

Registered office address details are included in Note 4 to t
2018

Eguity

Loan rote

Total Investment
Less share of losses
Net investment

Non-current assets

Current assets

Non-current habilities (non-recourse}
Current iabilities

Net assets

Turnover
Expenses
Profit/(loss)

Group share of profiti{loss)
2017

Equity

Loan note

Total investment
Less share of losses
Net investment

Non-current assets

Current assets

Non-current habilities (non-recourse}
Current habilities

Net assets/{liabilities)

Turnover

Expenses

Profit/(loss) after tax

Group share of profit/{loss) after tax

The group disposed of their 50% equity interest in Pinewoo  Felevision Limited on 26 September 2017 for £nil

consideration

The Group's interests in joint ventures at 31 March 2018 an

As at 31 March 2017

Share of profit from joint venture
Investment in joint ventures
Repayment from joint ventures
Taxation

Foragn currency movement
Other movements

As at 31 March 2018

mntinued)

“terests in the folowing joint ventures

Principal
place of % voting
business % equity interest rights
USA 40 &0
USA 40 50
5 Fayette
.. Parent Compa wy financial stataments
PAS PTV Total
£'000 £'000 £'000
10 531 - 10 51
460 - 460
10671 - 10,971
i0 971 - 10,971
83421 - 93 421
2412 - 2412
(58,345) - (56 345)
(5 462) - (5462}
34,026 34 026
21 520 58 21578
(14 0B6) (481) (14 547)
7,454 (423) 7,031
3,155 (G 3,064
PAS PTV Total
£000 £000 £'000
5661 - 5,661
2,092 5§22 2714
7753 522 8 375
- (595) (H35)
7753 27 7730
102,270 - 102,270
4 850 394 5244
(65.260) {1.127) {B6 387)
(12 970) (127) (13.097)
28 630 EB0) 25 030
18 120 80 18,180
(14 170) (725) (14.895)
3950 (665) 3,285
1580 {498) 1082
1 31 March 2017 vas as follows
2018
£'000
7,780
3,064
196
{1,533)
1,963
(557}
58

10,971



Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (cent nued)
for the year ended 31 March 2018

3

10

11

Interests in joint ventures (continued)

The value of the joiit veniure in Pmewood Atlanta LLC and PA". Moldings Faye!
of taxation, which has been presented separately on the staten~nt of financial p-

PAS 18 & partnership in the US and therefore the partners are responsitie for ta
Histarcally the interest in PAS was shown in the Condensed G up Statement
given the nature of the partnership the amounts in relation te the curtent and de’
tax and deferred tax respectively m the current pernod  Ttus has no impact on ne
Statement of Comprehensive Income 15 now presanted within t < on profit on o
from participating interests As the impact on prior penods s im natenal ail anca
the current pencd

Interest receivable and similar income

On financial assels measured at amortised cost
Interest recevable from jo nt ventures

Loan interast receivable

2ank Interest receivable

On financial assets measure.d af far value
Far vatue maovements of denvative financial instrumants

Interest payable and similar charges

On financial instruments reasured at amort'ses cost
Bank |nan and overdraft nterest

Loan interest payable

Finance fee amortisation

On fimancial nstruments measured at fair value
interest rate hedging
Fair value movements of denvative financial instrunrants

Not on financiat instruments
Finance lease interest
Otiher interest pad

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

(a) Analysis of credit for the year

Current tax

UK carporation tax charge

Amounts payable for Croup tax loss relief
Foreign corporation tax

=oreign tax suffered

UK film tax rehef

Doukle taxation credit

Amoumts under provided In previous years

Deferred tax.

Relating to ongination and reversal of temporary differences
Cffect of change in deterred tax rates

Armounts junderyover provided In previous yoars

Tax charge in the Group
comprehens:ve income statement

28

LLC feollectively "FAS™ 13 shown gross
on

sharges In refation to the entity

“inancial Position net of tax however
rect tax have been transferred to current
1msets Additiorally tax inthe Group
1y activities rather than within inceme
‘ments have been made prospectively in

2018 2017
£'000 £000
230 13
1791 18
56 15
1.867 344
1.308
3773 344
2018 2017
£°000 £'000
1683 3234
3,042 .
438 649
5163 3883
213 767
- 494
813 1,281
90 122
1 28
91 150
5.067 5 294
2018 2017
F'o00 £'300
3.964 1,837
1840 1,184
727 {329)
318 15
(257} t1,792)
{224} {85}
1352} (1,137)
8016 {407)
208 918
- 81)
(219) e
(311) 1,843
5905 1436
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11

Tax on profit on ordinary activities (continued)

(b) Factors affecting current taxation for the year:

pProfit on ordinary activities before tax

prafit on ordinary activiies multiphed by the standard rate

of comporation tax m the UK of 18%: {2017 20%)
Adiustments i respect of

UK Film tax rehef

Corporation tax overprovided in previous years
Deferred tax overprovided in previous years
Nen-allowable depreciation on bulidings

profit from jaint venture

Other non-allowable expenses

Unrelieved tax losses

Double taxation relief

Owverseas tax at different rates

Land remediation relief

Deferred tax - effect of taxation rate change
Other adjustments

{c) Deferred tax

Deferred tax relales o the following

Group comprehensive statement of ncome:
Deferred tax credit ansing on

Accelerated capital allowances

Short term temporary differences

Tax losses

Fair value adjustment in respect of SSPP acguisiion
Net deferred tax (creditiicharge

Staterment of financial position

Accelerated capital allowances

Shart term temporary differences

Tax losses

Farr value agjustment in respect of 8SPP acquisition
nNet deferred tax liabity

2018 2017
£'000 £'000
30,263 15,043
5,750 3008
(257) (1792)
{352) (1137)
(319) 985
861 404
- {263)
121 328
{32) 82
(224) (85}
564 156
(3) (13
5 (238}
(%) -
5,905 1436
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
75 1167
{230) 178
44 518
- (26
{111} 1843
Charged to Balance shect
- 31 March income  reclassification At 31 March
2017 statement {see note 8) 2018
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
2,147 75 1,454 3,676
(211 (230) (455) (888)
(44} 44 - -
335 - - 335
2 227 {i11) EES] 3,115

The deferred tax assets are shown net against the non-curr it deferred tax | bility in the statement of financial position

The man rate of UK corporation tax reduced to 19% from 1 -.pril 2017 from 2 3% 10 the previous financial year A further
reduction to the main rate of UK corporation tax to 17% has ..een enacted and 15 effective from t April 2020 Deferred tax

balances have been calculated at 17%

At 31 March 2017 a potential deferred tax asset of £2,000 1.\ respect of £9 O 0 of non-trading losses in Sauls Farm
Limited and £nil of trading losses in Teddington Studios Lt t=d had not been recogiused  Dunng the year, Sauls Farm
Limited and Teddington Studios Limited were dissolved anc there are no unre cognised deferied tax assets in respect of

£9.000 of losses at 31 March 2018
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12 Dividends
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
2017 Final dwvidend paid at 20 8p per share (2016 3 2p) '1.950 1,837
2018 Intenm dividend paid at £nil per share (2017 3 1p) - 17/7
1.950 3614
13 Intangible assets
Goodwilf
£'000
At 31 March 2017 and 31 Masch 2018 5,604
Amortisation
At 31 March 2017 1,120
Provided dunng year 560
At 31 March 201§ 1.680
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 3,924
At 31 March 201/ 4 484
Goodwill has been acguired through business combinations an. has heen allor :d tn tha Group s Media Services cash-
generating unit
Followang a review for indicators of impairment at the reporting ‘ate t was def=r +1=d that there were no indicators that
the carrying value exceeded the recoverable amount
14 Property. plant and equipment
Lerse-hold [ tures,
Freehold land nnprove- fittir s and Assets under
and bwldings ments eqt Tment construction Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 31 March 2017 251 389 179 2718 5787 303 073
Additions 3250 12 1852 1172 6 286
Reclassification 8 4490 - 166 {5 G5b) -
Cisposals {150} 112) a5 - {77)
At 31 March 2018 262,969 179 ‘4,831 4,303 309,282
Depreciation
At 31 March 2017 38 597 20 7435 67 053
Provided dunng year 5144 10 2367 8811
Disposais (11 {4) 8y - (23)
At 31 March 2018 44,730 25 1085 - 75,841
Net book value
At 31 March 2018 218,239 153 ‘3,746 1,303 233,441
At 31 March 2017 212 792 159 4 282 5 7837 236,020

Assets under construction at 31 March 2018 and 2017 relate to costs capitalise”!
not depreciated  Phase One of the developrient became oper. 1onal on 30 Jur:

n rezpect of Pinoweod East These are
7016
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14  Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The Group's long-term loan is secured by a floating charge

ser the Group's issets

Included wittin Fixtures, fithngs and equipment are assets | _lo under fmance leasas with a nat book value of £2 734 000

{2017 £3 214,000} and depreciation charged in the year of

On 26 June 2018, the Group exchanged contragis for the a

16  Other investments

At 31 March 2017
Revaluation
At 31 March 2018

Fair value
At 31 March 2018
At 31 March 2017

Company name
PMBS Holdings Limited
POP Global Limited

Holding compur

514 000 (2017 : 570 000)

wistion of ¢ 80 acres of land adjacent to Pinewood studios

£'000
1220
480
1,680
1,680
1220

Country of
mnce.poration “ equity interest
Urnt «d Kingdom 15 0%
United Kingdom 12 5%

PMBS Holdings Limited owns 100% of Pinewood MBS Ligh g bumited  a coiapany that has an exclusive agreement to

provide Lighting facihties at the Group's UK facilites

The registered office of PMBS Holding Limited 15 Pinewcoc studios Pinewds d Road lver Heath Buckinghamistwre, SLO

ONHM

The registered office of POP Global Limited s 6 Elder &tic ¢ London Engli nd E1 GBT
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16 Financial nstruments held at fair value through profit or loss

The carmnng value of the Group’s financial instruments measur d at fair vahue th sugh profit or loss at 31 March 2018

were
2018 2017
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss. £°000 £'000
Cther investments (Note 15) 1,680 1220
Loan notes recervable (Note 1/} 2.738 2531
Faw value at 31 March 2018 4.418 3751
2018 2017
Frrancial Nabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss £'000 £000
Dervatives (Nole 22} 1781 3 687
Fair value at 31 March 2018 1781 3 687

Other mnvestmenis (Equity)

The fair vatuz of the eguity has been calculaled by using a disc unted cashflow  ocel The key inputs in respect of the
discountad cashfiow modcel are the discount factor of 117 dee sed o be amart * -ate reflecting the nsks associated with
the azaet the projected anrual cashflows and an annual grewtl factor applied o 257

Loarn notes receivable

The far valug calculations fou the lean use eight year income pi yections and ar - e an 8% coupon on the loan 1s rofled
inte the loan balance The par vatue of the foan notes 1s £2 /m ind the fair vale s~ 2raise with the assumptions noted
helow results n a far value that 10 ine witk this par vatue Th : kev assumptic 1=d m the value in use calculations

are

Discount rate

The discount rate reflects the currant market assessment of the nisks specific tc 1o financial instrument  The discount
rate was calculated using the Group s cost of debt The discour “rate used for il year ended 31 March 2018 15 8%
(2017 93™)

incorme from operations
Income projections are fixed using an mterest coupon of 8% on *he loan notes

17  Trade and other receivables

2018 2017
£°000 £'000
Amount faliing due wittun one year.
Trade recewvables - Media services "1.118 6 521
Trade recewables - Film production companies 105 4125
Prepayments and other recevables 2,638 5026
Loan notes recewvabie 2738 2531
Corporation tax receivable - 1 548
5,599 19,749

Amount faithng due after more than one year-
Loans due from parent undertakings

1 5644 19 749

Loan notes recevable of £2 738 000 (2017 £2 531 000) ara di = for repaymeni v 1 January 2025 Interest whichas
rolled up 18 charged at 8% and is payable in June and Decemt r each year

Loans due from parent undefakngs aie due for repayment on - Docember 2007 170l carry interest chiraed at 4 05°%4
(2017 ail
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18

19

20

21

Cash and cash equivalents
Included within the cash and cash equivalents balance pet

Media Investment Fiim production company cperatons

Cash avalable for general use
Restricted cash and cash equwalents
Net cash and cash equivalents

Share capital

Issued, called up and fully paid
57,409 926 Qrdinary shares of 10p each

+ statement of fiiancial position at the reporiing date are
amounts unavailable for general use These amounts refate ') funds reserve solely for use In the production of specific

2018
£000

42,653
390
43,043

2018
£'000

5,741

2017
£'000

26 999
1 465

28,464

The Ordinary shares, which carry no night to fixed income « zh carry the ngh- to one vote at general meetings of the

Company
Reserves

Share premium

Consideration recevad for shares 1ssued above ther nonmie 4l value net of tra 1sachon costs

Qther reserves
Other reserves represent Capital redemption reserve £135

Caprtal redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserve represents amounts reseiy.

relating to the cancellation of shares

Merger reserve

10 and Merger o serve £348 000

N accerdance with section 733 of the Companies Act 2006

On acquinng Shepperton Studios Limited the Company 1s=. 4 ardinary share s as part of the consideration Merger relief
was taken in accordance with Section 131 of the Companie  Act 1885 (since succeeded by Section 612 of Companies

Act 2008), and hence £348 000 was credited {0 the merger

Transiation reserve

se1ve

Cumulative effect of the effect of foraign currency translauc . of operations wirn a functional currency other than Sterling n
ine with the Group's foreign currency translation accournting olicy

Retamned earnings
Cumulative profit and less net of distnbutions to owners

Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Current Borrowings
Bank overdraft 0}

Non-Current Borrowings

Term loan facihty (n
Revolving credit faciity (n
Asset linancing iy
Loan notes {Iv)

Non-current drawn loan facilities
Secured bank loan arrangemenit costs

Total current and non-current Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings

Maturity

Annu il renewal

29 May 2019
1. lune 2023
5 Novenber 2019
1 Decernber 2023

2018 2017
£'000 £'000

- 100,000

724 1,504
246,681 -
247,405 101,504
(1,282) {438)
246,123 101,066
246,123 101,066
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Interest bearing loans and horrowings (continued)

| he effective interest rates of the above loans and borrowirgs 7 e (1) Bank ove
Term loan facility and Revelving credit facility - LIBOR plus wvanabklz margin, (i
44%

At 31 March 2017 the Gioup had a £100m term Ioan facidty us d to fund the oc
year to 31 March 2047 £27m was drawn down on this facility

On 13 December 2017 a refinancing of the Group was complet .4 At this daie
faciibes winch wear= £87 0 million were repaid in full and £250 nillien of new ?
December 2023 were issued  2inswood Groap Limtad advanc »d a £127 5 mill

On 12 December 201+ the Group completed a super senwr e olving credit far
down untit 1 May 2023 with Barclays Bank plc Credd Suisse At London Branc!

The Giroup termmated its existing £35 million mulb-currency rev fvina credit facr

Interest-beanng loans and borrowings are stated net of unarror sed 1ssue costs
amortised aver the term of the interest-bearnng loans anc borre' #ngs to which

These facilites are secured on rertain of the prrapal assets of the Group
Assef financing facity

The asset fimancing facihty compnsas cf both A <terling chattel rorigage fanit
a fixed termy with fixed monthlv payments and are secured over dentihabfe asae

clasaifed as Fixtures fittngs and equipment within Property ¢ 1ant and =aikpr

Borrowing factities
The avel'akle but undrawn commstied faciibies Are as follows

waft - basevate plus 2 5% margin {1}

T ot financing - 6 2% (1v) Loan notes -

t uchon of Pirewood East During the

1w 3roup s existing drawn senior
. Senior Secured Notes due 1
voaan on to ts Parent

¢ o £50m which 1s avallable to draw
=S58C Bank plc and U'oyds Bank plc
rand its £5m overdraft facity

07 7 milion The izsue costs aie baing
7 rzlate

11 a finance lzase faciity which are over
o #nequal valug  Thesz assets are
non the statement of financial position

Vithin 1

At 31 March 2018 year 1- years 5+ years Total

£000 £7000 £'000 £'000
Facilities-
Revolving credit facilty - - 570000 50,000
Asset financing faciity fatils] e - 724
Loan notes - - 250 GO0 250 000
Total faciities RN 155 300 000 JUG 724
Drawn foans
Revolving credi facility - - -
Asset financing facility (508) L B5) - {724}
Lecan notes - {250 600) (250 000)
Total drawn loans 1554} i55) (250 000) {250,724}
Undrawn faciities
Revolving credit facility - - 50,000 50 GO0
Assot finanoing facility - - -
Loan notes - - -
Undrawn committed facibities - - 50 000 50 000
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23

Dernwvative financial instruments

The Group sinterest rate swaps are recogmsed as denvaa  financial nstrur ents Fair value movements are recogmsed
In the income staterment within interest recewable and suil o income
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Financial haplities carned at farr value
Non-current denvative finanaial instrument liabiities 1,781 3,687
1,781 3 687

Interest rate swaps
To mimmise the volatiity In cash flows from a change in LIE 'R the Group he ld interest rate swaps designated as hedges

agamnst drawn debt obligations as detailed below

2018 2017

Effective interest rate % Maturity £'000 £'000
2 0% + varable margin 3L Apri 2025 25000 25000
2 08% + variable margin 30 Apnit 2022 2% 000 25 000
50 000 50 000

The Group's economic hedges of interest rate risk are treal u as dervative financial nstruments and fair value
movements are recognised in the income statement

The terest swap finance costs are charged to the ncome tement when th.e swap 18 payatle The swaps arte payable
on a quarterly pasis

Trade and other payables

2018 2017

£'000 £'000

Trade payables - Media services 3,345 4218
Trade payables - Fim produchon companes 1,753 4909
Caorporation tax payable 794 -
Yalue added tax 2,902 3823
Other payables 942 15845
Accruals 4,842 10,652
Amounts due to parent company 3124 2,043
Capital expenditure related payables 4,536 5986
685 835

Deferred rayatty

Deferred income - Media services 25,802 18,637
Deferred income - Film production companies 7 1,613
48,762 53 661

Amounts due 1o parent company bear interest at 4 05% anc h.ave ne fixed re)ayment terms

No fixed security has been given in reéspact of any of the 1€ s listed above
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24 Obligations under leases

Operating leases as lesseq

Future mimmum rentals payable on the Group’s nen-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March

2017 are as follows

2018

£'000

Within one year 470
After one year but not more than five years 1,430
After five years but not more than 20 years -
1,960

2017

£000
1,109
4,009
4,258

9,376

Dunng the year two of the Group's property rental agreements were cancelled The landlords released the group from

obligations under these lease agreements and no payments under the operating lease agreements are due after 31
2018 (2017 - £7 4m)

Operating leases as lessor

March

Future rminirmum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 are

as follows
2018
£'000
Within one year 9,975
After one year but not more than five years 33,018

42,993
Dunng the year the Group leased a part of its freehold premises to an unconnected company for S years

Finance leases as /essea

2017
£000

Obligations under finance leases are secured on the assets to which they relate The future minimum lease payments as

at 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2017 are as follows
2018
£'000

Within one year 580
After one year but not more than five years 167
747

25 Related party transactions

The Group has elected not to disclose related party transactions entered into between wholly owned members of its
group In accordance with paragraph 331A of FRS 102

The Group's subsidiary undertakings are listed in Note 4 to the Parent Company financial staterments

2017
£000

824
741

1,565

wider

A number of the Group's subsidiary undertakings have claimed exemption from audit, these are listed in Note 4 to the

Parent Company financial statements

Transactions between the Group and its related parties are disclosed below

2018

£'000
Sales to jointly controlied entibes 814
Purchases from jointly controlled entities a1
Amounts owed to jointly controlled entihes 6
Amounts owed by pintly controlled entities 564

26 Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

M7
£'000

3,003
242
27
178

On 4 October 2018, Pinewood Group plc was acquwed by Picture Holdco Limited, whose uibmate parent undertaking and

controlling party 1s PW Real Estate Fund Il GP Limited, in its capacity as General Partner of PW Real Estate Fund

On 5 October 2016, Pinewood Group plc re-registered from a public mited company and became Pinewood Group
Limited

The registered office address of Picture Holdco Limited 1s 4th Floor, 18 St Swithin's Lane, London, England, EC4N

nee

8AD

Picture Holdeo Limited 1 the only parent of Pinewocd Group Limited which prepares consalidated financial staterments,

and these will be publicly available at Companies House
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Parent Cempany Statement of Financial Position

as at 31 March 2018

Assets

Non cuirent assets
Invastiments
Deferred tax asset

Current assets
Trade and other recewvables

Due within one year

Due after more than one year
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity and liabllities
Share capital

Share premium

Capital redemption reserve
Merger reserve
Translation reserve
Retained eamings

Total equity

Non-current Babilities
Interesi bearng loans and borrowings
Derivative financial instruments

Current liabitities
Trade and other payables

Total liabilities
Total equity and Habilities

Note

[- N

2013
£'000

33,006
123
33,134

259,869
429,045

32,472
421,396

454,520

5,744
76,696
13s
343
887
2,687
86,464

249,442
1,781
251,223

116,833

116,833

368,056
,520

2017
£000

32,956

33,084

278,470

4,503
282,973

316,057

5,741
76,606
136
348
1,340
17,891
102,161

101,086
3,687
104,753

109,153
109,153

213,806
316,057

As permitted by section 408(4) of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has elected hol to present its own income statement
for the year The loss of the Company for the year was £3,284,000 {year ended 31 March 2017: profit of £3,138,000).

The financial statements of Pinewood Group Limited (registered number: 3880552) were approved and suthorised for issue by

the Baard of Directors on 26 June 20618, They were signed on its behalf by
t
¢ ety C

Director

The notes on pages 40 to 47 form part of these financial statements.
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Parcnt Company Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 March 2018

At 01 April 2017

Loss for the year

Translation reserve movement
Total comprehensive ncome for
tha year

Equity dividends
At 31 March 2018

At 01 Apnil 2016

Profit for the year

Translation reserve movement
Total comprehensie tncome for
the year
Egquity dnadends
At 31 March 2017

Trnslation

Share capital Share premum rescrse Other - serves  Retamed carnings  Total equity
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
574 76,500 1340 433 17 881 102 15%

- - - - (3 284; (3 284)

- - (453) - - (4573)

- 1453) - (3284, {3737)

- - - {11 850 111 95
5,741 76,656 8R7 483 2.657 86,464
5741 76893 - 133 18 367 101 287
- - - - 3133 3138

_ 1 =A7) . - 1 340

- - 1270 - 3128 44,3

- - - - (3614} {3614)
5741 7h 56 1 340 423 17§91 102 151

The notes on pages 40 to 47 foim part of those finanaial statements



Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statement:.
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Pinewood Group Limited ("the Company™) 1s a private company i ated by shares in sorporated and domiciled i England The
registered office 1 located at Pinewood Studios Pinewood Road iver Heath Buck nghamshire, SLO ONH

1 Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies are summansed below Tty have all been spplied consistently throughout the current
year and pnior year

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared n accordar . 2 with FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard
apphicable n the UK and Republc of lreland’ {"FRS 1027} a  the requrements of the Companies Act 2008 including the
provisions of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and + s1oups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and under
histoncal cost convention

This company 1s a qualifying entity for the purposes of FRS 102, being a men ber of a group where the parent of that
group prepares publicly available consolidated financial stat «ments including this company which are intended to give a
true and farr view of the assets, izbilities financial position . +d profit or loss of the group The company has therefore
taken advantage of exemptions from the foilowing disclosul  requirements

- Section 4 Statement of Financial Position — Reconciliator of the opening and closing number of shaies

» Section 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' — Presentation of a s {ement of cash 1 ow and related notes and disclosures

= Section 11 'Basic Financal Instruments’ and Section 12 C ner Finanaial Instrument Issues’ - Carnying amounts, interest
mcomelexpense and net gamsiosses fof each category of ' antiab instrurne i, basis of determmming fanf values details of
collateral, details of hedges, hedging farr value changes rec «jnised in profit o loss and in other compreghensive ncome

- Section 33 'Related Party Disclosures’ — Compensation fc ney managemert perscennel

The fmancial statements of the campany are consclidated . the financial stat.:ments an pages 11 ta 35

Gaing concern

No material uncertainties that may cast sigruficant doubt on ne ability of the ( ornpany to continue as a going concern into
the foreseeable future have been identified by the Directors  Therefore, the financial statements have been prepared on
the going concern basis

Fixed assets investments
Investments (n subsidiaries and joint ventures are stated w1, aly at cost The carrying values are reviewed for impawrments
if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying  alues may not be recoverable

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial hiabilities are recognised wher the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument

Financial iabilities and equity nstruments are classified acCoding to the subrtance of the contractual arrangements
entered into An equity instrument 1s any contract that evide 12es a residual inierest In the assets of the Company after
deducting all of s habities

Financial assets and habiities

All financial assets and habilibes are intally measured at tre 1sachon price (including transaction costs) except for those
financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or e >3 wiuch are initi illy measured at fair value (which s normaltly
the transaction price excludng transaction costs) unless th  arrangement coashitutes a financing transaction If an
arrangement constitutes a finance transaction the financial .sset or financial iability 15 measured at the present value of
the future payments discounted at a market rate of mnterest .1 a similar debt 1 strument

Finaricial assets are derecognised when and only when a) t = contractual nguts to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or are settled, b) the Group transfers to another party substantally all « f the nsks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset, or ¢} the Group, despite having retained sor ¢ significant nsk< and rewards of ownership, has transferred
control of the asset to another party and the other party has 'ne praclical ability 1o sell the asset in its entirety to an
unrelated third party and 1s able to exercise thal abiny unia .raily and withou needing to impose additional restrictions on
the transfer

Financial hlabiiies are derecogmised only when the obligauc 1 specified in the contract 1s discharged cancelled or expires



Pinewood Group Lumited

Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements {continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2018
1 Accounting policies (continued)

Equnty instruments

Equily instruments issued by the Company are recoided at the air value of prac

recelved or recelvabte, net of direct issue costs

Interest-beaning loans and borovangs

ObYgations for loans and borrowings are recogrised whken the « ompany becor
measured mitizlly at the far values of consideration recaved te - duectly atinix
recognibion interest-bearing foans and borrowings are subsequ ntly measuied
Interest mathod, allocating the: nterest mcome or nterest experse over the rele-
amortised 1IN the moome statement over the remaning matunity Hf the loans at a
reviewed for changes in circumstances that may indicate that it 2 loans will not ~

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
ranagement 1 Yake judgemenis estimates and

The preparation of the Company s fimancial statements requires
assumptions that aftect reported amounts at the reporting date

Estimates assumptions and judgemeants are appled by the Cor
provisions for impairments of assets These estimates assump
hasi= but are not significant

2 Profit and loss
As permitted by section 408(4) of the Companies Act 2006 the
statement for the year  The loss of the Compary far the year v
£3 138 00

3 Staff costs and numbers
Staff casts including Directors
Salares
Social security costs

Pension costs
Other employee benchits

Average monthiy number of employees,
mcluding Executive Directors

Management

Adminrstration
Executive

4 Investments
Cost and net book value
At 31 March 2017
Additions

At 31 March 2018

pary Trese
ans ard judger

ompany has
15 E3 284 000

A7)

2018
£000

1309
195
82
43

2109

2018
n- mbers

- a

10

o received cash or other resources

rarty to the related contracts and are
mle transaction costs
amonised cost nsing the effective
7 pened  The loan issue costs are
nstant carrying amount and are
hioled to maturty

After nihal

d= but are not imited to accruals and
*. are atso evaluated on a continual

t= 1 not to prescnt its own income
~rended 31 March 2017 profit of

2017
£'000

2172
203
76

G6

2,517

2017
numbers

=W

13

£'000

12956
50

33,006



Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Parent Company Financial Siatement: {continued)

far the year ended 31 March 2018
4 Investments {continued)

Subsidiaries

Detalls of investments in which the Company holds 20% ar nore of the nomial vatue of ardinary share capital (o other
class of share capital where marked -, see pelow) are as fo .ws

Company name

Pinewood-Shepperton Studics Limited
Pinewood PSB Limited'

Pinewood Film Adwsors Limited’
Pinewood Film Advisors (W) Limited”
Pinewood Studics Limited

Shepperon Studios Limited

Shepperton Studios (General Partner) Linutad

Pinewood Shepperten Limited

Baltray No 1 Limited

Baltray No 2 Limited

Shepperton Management Limited
Pinewood Shepperton Facilihes Limited
PSL Consulting Limited

Pinewood Studio Wales Limited
Pinewood Germany Limited

Pinewoed Fiim Services GmbH
Pingwood Dominican Republic Limited
Pinewood Malaysia Limited

Pinewood USA Inc *

Pinewood Fiim Production Studios Canada Inc
Pinewood Produchion Sernces Canada Inc

Pinewoad Films Limited
Pinewocd Media Developmeant Limited
Pinewood Productions Ireland Limited

Space Bear IR Designated Activity Company

Pinewood Last Passenger Limited
Pinewood Belle Limited

Pinewood Camera Trap Lirmited
Pinewood Christmas Candle Limited
Finewood Robot Qverlerds Limited
Pinewood Riot Club Limited
Pinewood Pressure Linited”
Pinewood KYF Limited”

Pinewood Films No 10 Limited
Pinewood Films Ne 11 Limited
Pinewood Films No 12 Limited
Pinewood Fitms No 13 Limited
Pinewood Fiims No 14 Limited
Where Hands Touch (FPC) Limited
Pinewood Films No 18 Limited®*
The Studios Unit Trust’

Shepperton Studios Property Rartnership
Pinewood Finco FLC' "

Principal Activity
-lalding company
“roperty develop nent
Im investment cdwice
M investment advice
-ilm studio servic s
“iim studio sarvic 38
operty investme nt
sormant
“roperty investm nt
‘Toperty mvestme-nt
‘roperty support
roperty support
dm services
Cilm services
Zormant
“armant
Ilm services
dm services
iIm services
im services
W0 services
iImM mvestment
Im services
Am services
im saivices
Am production
-i'm production
ilm production
iIlm produchon
-ilm production
Am production
Aim production
IIm production
im productian
dm production
Ihm production
“ilm production
-1lm production
“iim production
=1lm production
ropery Investmynt
“roperty investim. nt
"inanclal sarvices

41

Country of
incorporation
United Kingdom
United Kingdoem
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United HKungdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Urited Kingdom
Germany
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
UsSA

Canada
Canada

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Ireland

Ireland

United ¥angaom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdaom
United Kingdem
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdorn
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdam
United Kingdom
Jerssy

United Kingdom
United Kingdom

Y equity
interest
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%:
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements (continued)
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4

Investments (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Directly held
Investment held as follows
o Pinewocd Shepperton Studios Limited - 17 830 ordinary shr, 23 of 5p each with a nominal value of
£892, and 942,700 redeemable shares of 10p each with a r munal value of £84,270  Further detalls
included 10 the subsidiary financial stateme s of Pinewood  hepperton Studios Uimited
o The Studios Unit Trust - units held in Jerse ¢ Property Unit 7 13t by Baltray No 1 Limited and Baitray
No 2 Limited
o Shepperton Studios Property Partnership - Limited Partners* in in which Baltray No 1 Linited and the
Stuchos Umt Trust are Limited Partners
“At the date of approval of these financial statements these co' panes have ac* '« proposals to striike off
“The reporting date for Pinewood Film Services GmbH and Pin wood USA Inc 31 December and for Pinewood Films
No 16 Limited 15 28 February
“On 8 November 2017 the company purchased 100% of the st ares of Pinewoc ' Fince PLC upon the entity's
ingorporation

The registered office of the subsidianes (or local equivalent) arc as followvs

o All United Kingdom subsidianes - Pinewoor: Studics Pinev d Road iver Heath SLO ONH England

o The Studios Unit Trust - 47 Esplanade St Heher Jersey.' 1 0BD

o All Irish subsidiaries - Second Floor 10 So ith Anne Stieet utln 2 ireland

o Pinewood Film Services GmbH - cie Gree fort Partnersche  von Rechisanwalten Arndtstrale 28 e
28 60325 Frankfurt am Main, Germany

o Pinewood USA Inc and Pmewocod Media C uarantors Insur - ce Services LLC — clo Katten Munchin
Rosenmian LLP 2029 Century Park East & uite 2500 {os - neles CA 90067 USA

o Pinewood Production Services Canada Inc - 225 Commiss: nars Strest Toronto ON M4M 0AT,
Canada

@ Pinewood Film Production Studios Canada 'nc Sute 2600 nree Bentall Centre PO Box 49314
585 Burrard Street Vancouver BC V7X 11 3 Carada

Jomt ventures

As at 31 March 2018 the Company had interests in the follewin 1 joint ventures

Principal

plare of % voting
Company name bur mess % equity interest rights
Pinewood Atlanta LLC Us: 40% 50%
PAS Holdings Fayette LLC us. A0% 50%

None of the iInvestments in joint ventures 1s directly held The a counting refere 2 date for the two joint ventures s 21
December

Alljoint venture interests are indirectly held The registered offic = of Pinewood +~ anta LLC and PAS Holdings Fayette
LLC 1s 461 Sandy Creek Road Fayetteville Georgia 30214, UL &

Other investments
The Group owns 15% of the share capital of PMBS Holdings Lt1 PMBS Holding  Lid owns 100% of Pinewood MBS

7

Lighting Limited 1he Company also has an indrrect investent n POP Global L wted amounting to 12 5% of the share
capital POP Global Limited owns 100% of YWe Got Pop Limited

4z



Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statement:. (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2618

4 Investments {(continued)

Audit exemption

Pinewood Group Limited has given statutory guarantees ag st all the outste nding labilites of the below listed wholly-
owned subsidiaries at 31 March 2018 under Section 479A ¢, the Companies ¢t 2006, thereby allowing these subsichanes
to be exempt frem the annual audit requirement for the year «nded 31 March 2018

Although the Company does not anticipate the guarantees 1 be called upon the book values of the guaranteed habilies
excluding intragroup balances, for each relevant subsidiary .1t 31 March 2018 are set out below

Company

registrabon Liabilities to non-
Company name number group entities
£'000

Baltray No 1 Limited 05776674 96
Baltray No 2 Limited 05778635 -
Pinewcod Camera Trap Limited 08153323 -
Pimewood Dominican Republic Limited 07086246 27
Pinewood Films Limited 07660856 -
Pinewoad Films No 10 Limited 08818148 7
Pinewood Films No 13 Limited 09006529 12
Pinewood Malaysia Limited 07074446 66
Pinewood Media Development Limited 09592018 -
Pinewocod Riot Club Limited 08446929 -
Pinewood Robot Overlords Limited 08370083 -
Pinewood PSB Limited 08300755 15837
Pinewood Studic Wales Lirited 08863162 121
PSL Consulting Limited 08655214 156
Shepperton Management Limited 05907027 -
Shepperton Studios (General Partner) Limied 05913008 -
Pinewood Germany Limited 07079298 -
Pinewood Camera Trap Limited 08153323 2
Pinewecod Rabot Overlords Limited 08370083 2
Pinewsod Riot Club Limited 08446928 -
Pinewood Shepperton Facilites Limited 07527390 -
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Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2018

5 Tracde and other receivables

2018
£000
Amount falling due within one year
Prepayments and accrued mcome 66
Loans dug from subsidiary undertakings 5.414
Amounts due from subsidiary undentakings 2°3389
2. 3.869
Amount falling due after more than one year.
Loans due from parent undertakings 1 9045
T 2.045
5 8.914

Intragroup balances are repayable an demand and witerest s ¢ arged at 4 05°-

parent company are repayable on 1 December 2023 and carry 1 iterest charged

subsidiary undertakings are repayable on demand and interest ' - charged at 4 &
8 Share capital

tssued. called up and fully pard

57 409 526 Oidinary shares of 10p sach

2017
£'000

47
36,414
242 009
2¢8470

27/84+0

017 3 1%) The icans due from the
A4 Q5% (2017 nil) The loans due from

{2017 4 57%)

2018
£'000

5 741

2017
£'000

5741

The Ordinary shares which carry no nght to fed income eact carry the nght tr wna vote at general mestings of the

Company
7 Interest bearing loans and borrowings
iTatunty 2018 201/
£000 £:000
Current Borrowings
Bank overdraft Annaal '+ ewal - -
Non-Current Barrowings .
Term loan facility 29M  Z019 - 100 Q0G
Revolving credit facility 1 Jun 2623 - -
Asset financing 5 Novemt- 2119 724 1504
Loan from subsidiary undernaking 1 Dacemb - 2023 250,000 -
Non-current drawn loan faciliies 250,724 101,504
Secured bank loan arrangement costs (1,282) (438)
249,442 101 066
249,442 101,066

Total current and non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The lean from subsidiary undertaking carnes interest at 3 75%  nd 18 repayabls

Detalls of effective interest rates total facihbies secunty repavr 'ent covenants
Group financial statements accolints above

A4

n 1 December 2023

= listed in Note 21 of the consolidated



Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statement: {continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2018

8 Derivative financial instruments

The Company's interest rate swaps are recognised as dery .ove finanaial iInsruments Fair value movements are
recognised In the income statement within interest payable  1d similar charg: s

Further detaits can be found in Notg 22 to the conschdated _roup financial statements

2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Financiat iabilities carned at far value
Non-current denvative financial instrument iiabuities 1,781 3887
1,781 T _3BB7_
9 Trade and other payables
2018 2017
£'000 £'000
Other creditors 1,535 4992
Amounts due to parent undertakings 75 150
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings 115,223 104 01t
T 16833 109153

Intragroup balances are repayable on demand and interest  charged at 4 08 4 (2017 3 1)

10  Related party transactions

The Company has eilected not to disclose related party tran ictions entered 1 1to between whaily owned members of its
wider group in accordance wath paragraph 331A of FRS 10
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Pinewood Group Limited

Notes to the Parent Company Financial Statements {continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2018

"

12

Contingent hability

The Company has committed to provide financial support to ser eral of its wholly
current labiily position to an armourt as may be required to eneole each subsio
meet labilites as and when they fall due and carry on therr bus ness as a going -

Group tinited ntends to extend such support for a further 12 moanths from the -

shown below

Campany hame

Baltray No 1 Limited

Baitray No 2 Limited

Pinewood Films Limited

Finewoad Film Advirors (W) Limited
Pinewnood Germany Limited

Pinewood Media Development Limited
Finewood PSB Limited
Pinewood-Shepperton Studios Limited
Pinewoad Studios Limited

Pinewood Studic Wales Limited
Shepperton Studios Limited

Pinewood Film Adwisors Limited

The Company together with certam subsidiary undertakings ha 1 at the financa’
guarantee in favour of its bankers in respect of the bank borrov 'ngs of the Grov:

The guaramiee was secuted by a floating charge which as at 31 March 2018 wa-

The Inan notes 1ssued dunng the year within the financial stater ents of the Gic
charges over the trade and assets of the group headed by Fictt e Hold<o Limile

Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

On 4 Qotober 2016, Pinowood Group ple was acquited by Pictu e Holdeo Limite
controlling party 1s PV Real Estate Fund Il GP Limited 1nits ¢ pacity as Gene

On 5 October 2016, Pinewood Group ple re-registered from a obhc brmited com:
Limited

The registered office address of Picture Holdeo Limited 1s 4th F 3or 18 St Swt
Picture Holdeo Limited 1s the parent of the largest group for whi h consolidated
results of Pinewood Group Limited, and these will be publicly a allable at Comp

which censclidated accounts are prepared 15 for Pmewond Gro 'p Linited winch

financial statements

smed subsidiary undertakings m a net
v to fulfil 1s operational commitments to
meorn Where it s required  Pinewood
= the current commitments expire as

Expiration date of financial
support

& March 2019
8 March 2019
14 December 2018
14 December 2018
11 April 2018
15 December 2018
15 December 2018
15 December 2018
15 December 2018
15 December 2018
15 December 2018
27 July 2018

iatement date granted a cross

_252 505 000 (2017 £105,390 000)

1 are secured by fiked and floating

cf which the company is a member

whose ultimate parent undertaking and
" Partres of PW Real Estate Funa 1ILLP

any and became Finewood Group

15 Lane London England ECAN 8AD
reunts are prepared which include the
125 House The smallest group for

re shown on pages 13 to 38 of these



